

## AMERICAN NUCLEAR SOCIETY REACTOR PHYSICS DIVISON Fall 2010 Newsletter



#### **CONTENTS**

Message from the Incoming Chair 1
Program Committee News
New Chair and New Members
ANS 2010 Annual Meeting, San Diego, CA
PHYSOR 2012 Bid Results
Best Paper Award (ANS 2010 Annual Meeting)
ANS 2010 Winter Meeting, Las Vegas, NV
ANS 2011 Annual Meeting, Hollywood, FL
Special Sessions at Upcoming ANS Meetings
Participation in Program Committee Activities
Reactor Physics Division Website 4
Reactor Physics Standards 4
Revisions
Call for Volunteers
ANS-19 Meeting
Special Session Presentations
Honors & Awards
The Eugene P. Wigner Award
ANS Fellow Award
Physor 2012
Sessions for 2011 Annual Meeting
MC 2011, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil
2009-10 Reactor Physics Division Officers 9
ANS RPD Program Committee 10
The for D Program commute

#### Message from the Incoming Chair

#### By Ivan Maldonado (<u>imaldona@utk.edu</u>)

As I sat down to write this note to the RPD membership as your latest Chair, I hoped that I could write a mildly interesting and perhaps even slightly inspirational message for our members. Most importantly, however, I realized that I wanted to highlight our crucial role as a professional society, division, and as individuals in the development of the next generation of nuclear engineers and reactor physicists. I will try to do both.

The first ANS national meeting I attended was a 1992 meeting in Boston. At the time, I hoped to be a last-year Ph.D. student at NC State University. Prof. Paul Turinsky sponsored my trip and I was in awe of being able to meet Prof. Alan Henry as well as one of his well-known

protégés, Dr. Kord Smith. For the young man I was then; out of humble beginnings and a first generation college graduate in my family, that ANS meeting was truly one of the most momentous occasions of my life. Many such professional meetings would follow, but at that particular time, I could've never imagined that in the future I would become a professor of nuclear engineering, that I would design "real-life" BWR bundles and cores for a major vendor, and that 18 short years later I'd be writing a "message from the chair" addressed to our entire professional division, which by the way, continues to be one of the most active, productive, and highly regarded within the ANS.

As I look back, I humbly acknowledge in deep gratitude all the opportunities that have been provided to me as I've grown in the area of reactor physics. I'm thankful for the professors who gave me a hand, and the employers and universities who gave me opportunities, and the many colleagues who empowered me with the ability to contribute; such as folks like Dr. Russ Mosteller and Dr. Jess Gehin, who once upon a time "reeled me" into the role of Technical Program Chair; admittedly the most important and challenging position of any professional division. I learned from them, by their example, to give something back. In the process, however, I also developed a solid professional network that led to many friendships and even to the job I hold today. The list of RDP leaders whose dedication I hold in high regard is too long to provide, but it starts with the past Chair, Bob St Clair, a true gentleman always ready to lend a hand and contribute, and undoubtedly includes our current TPC, Dr. Fausto Franceschini, who I'm now convinced can leap tall buildings in a single bound!

The main point of this message is to simply remind you that the things we do to help, encourage, and empower future generations all do MAKE A DIFFERENCE. The students we support through travel and scholarships, someday sooner than later, will become the engineers, scientists, researchers, managers, professors, and society leaders that will fill our shoes. The time and effort (and budget) we invest in supporting and mentoring the up and coming young professionals, and the manner in which we lead them by example, will have long lasting and tremendously rewarding ramifications to our entire professional community. So, please don't wait to do something tomorrow; help make a difference today!



Making a Difference Worldwide (RPD Chair and Secretary, Red Square, Moscow, 2009)

## **Program Committee News**

By Fausto Franceschini (francef@westinghouse.com)

#### New Chair and New Members

I would like to thank the outgoing RPD Chair, Bob St. Clair for all the help, encouragement and patience he showed me throughout his Chairmanship of the Division. I welcome the new Chair, Ivan Maldonado, and wish him all the best in his new assignment.

I would also like to thank the outgoing members of the RPD Program Committee who ended their 3-year tenure: Ugur Mertyurek (ORNL), Andrew H. Nicholson (Dominion), David W. Nigg (INL), Pavel V. Tsvetkov (Texas A&M) and Akio Yamamoto (Nagoya University). Their contribution and efforts have not gone unnoticed.

Welcome to the new members of the Program Committee: Jeffrey A. Borkowski (Studsvik), Albert C. Kahler III (LANL), Shinya Kosaka (TEPSYS), Scott Palmtag (GNF), Cristian Rabiti (INL), Piero Ravetto (University of Turin), Andrei Rineiski (Karlsruhe Institute of Technology), Eugene Shwageraus (Ben Gurion Unversity) and Won Sik Yang (ANL). Their expertise and commitment during their 3-year tenure will be a key to maintaining the current high standards.

Last but not least, my renewed gratitude and appreciation go to the RPD reviewers, session chairs, special session organizers and panel organizers for their enthusiasm, reliability and unwavering effort. They are the foundation of the many accomplishments achieved by our Division.

#### ANS 2010 Annual Meeting, San Diego, CA

The 2010 Annual Meeting was held in San Diego, CA (June 13-18 2010). A total of 38 papers, out of the 42 submitted, were accepted and presented in 5 technical sessions. RPD also organized one panel at the meeting, with overall high technical quality and good attendance.

The three standing RPD sessions featured 25 papers divided among Reactor Physics General I and II, chaired by Blair Bromley - 10 papers; Reactor Analysis Methods, chaired by Andy Worrall - 8 papers and Reactor Physics Design, Validation and Operating Experience, chaired by Ben Forget - 7 papers. In addition two special sessions were organized: Advances in Reactor Core Analysis Methods to Meet the Challenges of Next-Generation and Advanced NPP Designs (organizers Mark DeHart and Ivan Maldonado) - 4 papers, and Advances in Small- and Medium-Sized Reactor Designs (organizers: Youssef Shatilla and Pavel Hejzlar) – 9 papers: a renewed success for a topic that evidently gathers wide interest.

In addition to the technical sessions, the panel Current Issues in LWR Core Design and Reactor Engineering Support has been organized by Moussa Mahgerefteh, Bob St. Clair and David Orr. This panel is part of a yearly series focusing on relevant technical challenges faced by the nuclear industry in the field of core design and associated plant operational issues. It features prominent guests from the relevant sectors of the nuclear industry and always commands interest and praises in the audience.

#### PHYSOR 2012 Bid Results

Three excellent proposals to host our next topical meeting, PHYSOR 2012, were presented at a joint session of the RPD Executive and Program Committee at the 2010 Annual Meeting in San Diego. A vote by RPD members on the best proposal ensued. After scrutiny of the ballots, the proposal led by the Oak Ridge National Laboratory and University of Tennessee, with the Knoxville professional and student ANS chapters, emerged as winner. The remaining two proposals, trailing close second and third, respectively, were from the ANS Trinity local section (covering Albuquerque, Santa Fe and Los Alamos) and the Idaho Section of the ANS, in collaboration with Idaho National Laboratory.

The technical quality, organizational strength and degree of innovation that distinguished all the proposals confirm the health of the Division and align with the success of the conferences that it organizes (plus made for an amiable but exciting competition among the bidders).

While my congratulations and best wishes for the organization of PHYSOR 2012 go to ORNL/UT and to the conference proposed General Chairs, Jess Gehin and Ivan Maldonado, and the Program Chair, Ron Ellis, I must praise equally all three organizations for their remarkable proposals and conduct during the bid.

#### Best Paper Award (ANS 2010 Annual Meeting)

Based on the scores provided during the review process and the presentations at the meeting, the RPD Best Paper Award for the ANS 2010 Annual Meeting has been awarded to the paper "MCNP Calculations of Subcritical Fixed Source and Fission Multiplication Factors", by *Brian C. Kiedrowski and Forrest B. Brown* (Los Alamos National Laboratory, X-Computational Physics Division). Congratulations to the authors and appreciation to the judges.

A special mention should also be made for the papers: "Improving the Thermal Conductivity of UO<sub>2</sub> Fuel with the Addition of Graphite Fibers", by Daniel F. Hollenbach and Larry J. Ott (Oak Ridge National Laboratory) and "HFIR Post-Irradiation Curium Target Rod Nuclide Inventory Calculations" by David Chandler, R. T. Primm, III (ORNL) and G. Ivan Maldonado (University of Tennessee).

#### ANS 2010 Winter Meeting, Las Vegas, NV

The RPD sessions at the ANS 2010 Winter Meeting in Las Vegas, NV (November 7-11) featured a record of 56 accepted papers, out of the 61 submitted. In addition to the three RPD standing sessions: Reactor Physics General I and II- 11 papers, Reactor Analysis Methods (cosponsored with MCD) - 7 papers and Reactor Physics Design, Validation and Operating Experience I and II- 14 papers there were four special sessions: "Progress in Reactor Physics Analysis for Thorium-Fuelled Reactors", organizers Blair Bromley and Ron Ellis - 9 papers, "Burnable Poison Optimization, Design, and

Analysis", organizers: Moussa Mahgerefteh and Akio Yamamoto- 4 papers, "Methods, Validation and Analysis for Sustainable Nuclear Energy", organizers Pavel Tsvetkov and Lawrence Miller – 6 papers, and "Numerical Error Estimation in Nuclear Engineering Modeling", organizer Hany Abdel Khalik – 5 papers.

RPD also organized the panel "The Philosophy of Benchmark Development within the ANS Joint Benchmark Committee". The organizer of the panel was Mark DeHart (also a panelist), with copanelists Barry Ganapol, Bernadette Kirk, Jim Gulliford and Blair Briggs. RPD also coorganized with MCD the panel "The CASL Nuclear Energy Modeling and Simulation Energy Innovation Hub." The panel organizer and panelist is Jess Gehin, with Doug Kothe, Chris Stanek, Bill Martin, John Turner and Jim Stewart as the other panelists.

Finally, RPD co-sponsored the session "Securing and Archiving Fast Reactor Data", organized within OPD by Ronald Omberg- 7 papers.

Thanks and congratulations to the session and panel organizers and to the reviewers for the effort they put forward in the timely resolution of all the papers submitted.

### ANS 2011 Annual Meeting, Hollywood, FL

#### Get ready! Submission of summaries will start on November 1, with a deadline of January 14 2011.

There will be a number of RPD sessions that you may consider submitting to, including our standing sessions (Reactor Physics General, Reactor Analysis Methods, and Reactor Physics Design, Validation and Operating Experience) and the special sessions "Advances in Nuclear Reactor Kinetics", "Design and Analysis for Plutonium and Minor Actinides Transmutation", "Nuclear Data Covariance: Evaluation, Processing and Application", "Advances in Small and Medium Sized Reactor Designs" and "Sensitivity, Uncertainty. and Data Assimilation Methodologies in Nuclear Systems Analysis". The meeting will also feature the panel "Current Issues in LWR Core Design and Reactor Engineering Support". Details of each session are provided at the end of this newsletter, beginning on page 6.

Reviewers will be greatly appreciated. If you would like to be added to the RPD list of

reviewers please send your request to the Program Chair, Dr. Fausto Franceschini.

#### Special Sessions at Upcoming ANS Meetings

Please consider organizing a special session or panel at one of the upcoming ANS meetings, such as the 2011 ANS Winter Meeting in Washington D.C. Timely special sessions and panels on topics of interest to academia and industry, with good quality contributions, have kept RPD one of the most active and relevant divisions.

#### Participation in Program Committee Activities

The success of our division is due to the active involvement of its members. I would like to encourage you to continue to contribute by submitting technical papers, organizing special sessions, reviewing papers, chairing sessions, and as members of the Program Committee and RPD governance in general.

## **Reactor Physics Division Website**

By Benoit Forget (<u>bforget@mit.edu</u>)

The new website is now up and running (http://rpd.ans.org/index.html) and ready to receive your contributions. Please contact me if you have any division related news to post or if you have any suggestions on how to make the website a resource to our division.

### **Reactor Physics Standards**

By Dimitrios Cockinos (cockinos@bnl.gov)

#### Revisions

Five of the most popular reactor physics standards are currently in various states of revisions: These are: ANSI/ANS-19.1, Nuclear Data for Reactor Design; ANSI/ANS-19.3, Steady State Neutronics Methods for Power Reactor Analysis; ANSI/ANS-19.3.4, Determination of Thermal Energy Nuclear Reactors; **Deposition** Rates in ANSI/ANS-19.6.1, Reload Startup Physics Tests for Pressurized Reactors, ANSI/ANS-5.1, Decay Heat Power in Light Water Reactors and Moderator Temperature Coefficient In Pressurized Water Reactors. Three of these standards. ANSI/ANS-19.3, 19.6.1 and

ANSI/ANS-19.11 are now in the process of balloting and the rest are undergoing revisions by their respective working groups.

#### Call for Volunteers

Volunteers are sought to join the working groups in the revisions of the following standards: ANSI/ANS-19.4, A Guide for Acquisition and Documentation of Reference Power Reactor Physics Measurements for Nuclear Analysis Verification; ANSI/ANS-19.5, Requirements for Reference Reactor Physics Measurements. Both these standards require knowledge and expertise in the areas of core design, core follow, analysis of measured power reactor data and benchmarking. Volunteers are also needed to help in the revision of ANSI/ANS-19.3.4, Thermal Energy Deposition *Rates* for which the required background is atomic and nuclear physics, reactor physics with emphasis on familiarity with standard ANSI/ANS-19.3. Persons interested in contributing to the efforts in the above standards should contact Ms. P. Schroeder, ANS Standards coordinator, pschroeder@ans.org.

#### ANS-19 Meeting

The regular meeting of ANS-19 was held during the ANS national winter meeting in Las Vegas on Sunday, November 7.

#### **Special Session Presentations**

The following three papers on standards will be presented during the Wednesday morning session "Reactor Physics Design, Validation and Operating Experience –II": ANS-19.6.1, "Reload Startup Physics Tests for Pressurized Water Reactors", by C. T. Rombough; "A Revised Standard for the Moderator-Temperature Coefficient of Reactivity", by R. D. Mosteller, R. R. St. Clair and R. E. Hall and "Proposed Revision of the Decay Heat Standard, ANSI/ANS-5.1", by I. C. Gauld, M. C. Brady, B. Wilson and F. Schmittroth

## Honors & Awards

By Dimitrios Cockinos (cockinos@bnl.gov)

#### The Eugene P. Wigner Award

Members of the Reactor Physics Division are invited to submit nominations for the Eugene P. Wigner Reactor Physicist award. This award, one of the most prestigious awards of the society, is presented on a yearly basis, whenever possible, to a person or persons of any nationality who have made outstanding contributions to the field of reactor physics. In addition to the inaugural award presented to Dr. Wigner in December 1990 at Princeton, past recipients of the award include A.M. Weinberg, J. Horowitz, A.F. Henry, E.M. Gelbard, R.L. Murray and N. Corngold. Candidates for the Wigner award need not be members of ANS. More information on nominations for this award may be found in the ANS web site. Deadline for nominations is April 1, 2011.

#### ANS Fellow Award

Members of The Reactor Physics Division are also reminded that they may submit nominations for the ANS Fellow award. This award is presented twice a year and recognizes technical achievements in the candidate's field. The nomination process is simple. Details about this award and deadlines may also be found in the ANS web site.

## <u>Physor 2012</u>

By Ron Ellis (ellisrj@ornl.gov)

The next "Physics of Reactors Topical Meeting" PHYSOR 2012 will be held in downtown Knoxville, Tennessee, April 15-20, 2012. Key supporting organizations are ORNL/UT-Battelle, UTK, TVA, EPRI, and Y12/B&W. The various Chairs and organizers involved are shown below:

#### **Honorary Chairs:**

Lee Dodds, UTK Kord Smith, Studsvik Scandpower Paul Turinsky, NCSU **General Chairs:** Jess Gehin, ORNL Ivan Maldonado, UTK

**Technical Program Chair:** Ron Ellis, ORNL

**TPC Co-Chairs:** Rakesh Chawla, PSI Bojan Petrovic, Georgia Tech T.A. Keys and Jim Lemons, TVA

Finance Chair: Trent Primm, ORNL

International Chairs: Jim Gulliford, OECD/NEA Gary Dyck, IAEA

**Student Chair:** UTK ANS Student Chapter President

**Corporate Sponsorship:** Chris Robinson, Y12

Website/Registration: Hanna Shapira

**Guest Program:** Wendy Ellis

Publicity: Ugur Mertyurek, ORNL

**Technical Tours:** Jessee Cheatham, ORNL

**Publications:** Germina Ilas, ORNL

**Special Events:** D.J. Lee, ORNL

**Exhibits:** Dan Ilas, ORNL

Arrangements: Katherin Goluoglu, ORNL

The theme that was selected for PHYSOR 2012 is "Advances in Reactor Physics – Linking Research, Industry, and Education." This theme will guide a structure for the meeting to emphasize these particular areas. A website is under development at physor2012.org. The application for official ANS approval and the preliminary budget for ANS HQ concurrence have been prepared and were presented at the ANS Winter 2010 Meeting in Las Vegas. Preparations are being made for the release of the Call for Papers, and the establishment of the technical program





OXVILLE

committee, paper reviewers, and volunteers. The technical program is currently under development, please contact the TPC on proposals and ideas for technical sessions and topics as well as volunteers for session organizers.

## Sessions for 2011 Annual Meeting

#### SPECIAL SESSIONS

#### Nuclear Data Covariance: Evaluation, Processing and Application

Over the past ten years there has been a great amount of work devoted to nuclear data covariance. New methodologies have been developed for the evaluation of nuclear data uncertainties in the resonance region as well as in the high-energy region in the US and abroad. The intent of the session is to attract abstracts that can provide a good description of the work developed such as covariance evaluation, processing and application in the nuclear field. The session will provide a good opportunity to learn about the current and the desired target uncertainties for major isotopes present in reactor applications.

Organizers: Luiz C. Leal and Gerardo Aliberti

# Advances in Small and Medium Sized Reactor Designs

Since the early 1990s the increased interest of developing countries in nuclear power has resulted in intensified efforts in development of small and medium sized reactors (SMRs). In industrialized countries, electricity market deregulation is calling for power generation flexibility that SMRs may offer. In addition to electricity generation, SMRs are of particular interest for non-electrical applications of nuclear energy, such as desalination of seawater, district heating and liquid fuel production. The recent upward trend in oil prices and the emerging need for finding a readily-available alternative energy source with minimal carbon footprint make SMRs an increasingly more attractive option.

In recognition of the above, this session aims to provide a forum for the exchange of information by interested parties on the technical, economic, environmental and commercial aspects of SMR development and implementation. This session builds on the success enjoyed by similar sessions held at the ANS 2009 and 2010 Annual Meetings in Atlanta and San Diego. This follow up will present updates in the design, licensing and deployment status of SMRs discussed in the preceding sessions as well as introduce additional SMR designs which did not contribute the previous times.

Organizer: Youssef Shatilla

#### Advances in Nuclear Reactor Kinetics

Nuclear reactor kinetics has recently experienced several advances and a novel interest has emerged, with special regards to possible applications to advanced reactors. The development of new timeand spatially-dependent methods coupled with increasing computational power allow reactor analysts of all reactor designers to reduce the number of assumptions associated with point kinetics and to fully investigate transient scenarios. For some Generation IV (e.g., pebble bed and molten-salt reactors) and source-driven systems new models and numerical methods are needed. The interpretation of kinetic experiments for source-driven systems has also evidenced the need of new physically consistent approaches. Recent developments in the field include new time-integration techniques, enhanced quasistatics and multi-scale approaches. Multidimensional features and full transport calculations also attract a great deal of interest. On the other hand, some numerical schemes have shown several shortcomings when applied to timedependent analyses, leading to some unphysical behaviors. Also the development of physically significant benchmarks constitutes an important issue for validation methods.

Several papers have been scattered at various conferences. The special session here proposed would give a chance to gather the specialists in the field.

Organizers: Piero Ravetto, David Chandler, Akio Yamamoto, Trenton Primm III

#### Design and Analysis for Plutonium and Minor Actinides Transmutation

Sustainability is a prerequisite for the enduring success of any system of energy production. In order to achieve a fully sustainable nuclear solution, a proper prescription must be identified to improve fuel utilization while minimizing the legacy on future generations.

Many solutions have been proposed for the management of the Plutonium and minor actinides (MAs) produced in fuel burnup, including partition and transmutation, as this would improve fuel utilization and have the potential to reduce its long- and intermediate-term radiotoxic content.

This special session aims to collect papers on the latest trend in Pu and MA burning in nuclear systems, both from the point of view of system design (Fast Reactors, Gas Reactors, Light Water Reactors and other systems) and/or tools and methodologies to investigate the fuel cycle associated to each system.

Organizers: Fausto Franceschini, Mark D. DeHart, Ivan G. Maldonado

#### STANDING SESSIONS

#### **Reactor Physics: General**

The field of reactor physics covers a wide range of technical areas. This session covers all of the topics that are not represented by any of the special sessions or other standing sessions. Topic areas can include cross sections, lattice physics, core physics, experiments, benchmarks, analysis methods.

#### **Reactor Analysis Methods**

The field of Reactor Physics relies heavily on the computational analysis of reactor systems. This session covers all aspects of reactor analysis methods and is a standing session of the Reactor Physics Division. Co-sponsored by the Mathematics and Computation Division.

# Reactor Physics Design, Validation, and Operating Experience

This session covers the engineering aspects of Reactor Physics in design of reactor systems, validation of methods and data, and the operating experience of all types of reactors. The session provides a connection to the real-world application of Reactor Physics.

#### PANEL SESSION

# Current Issues in LWR Core Design and Reactor Engineering Support

This panel session will consist of members invited from utilities and/or fuel vendors. The presentations will focus on sharing current core design capabilities, recent operating experience, and methods for addressing issues impacting core designs. Topics may include INPO SOER 96-02, INPO SOER 03-02, fuel performance (cladding failures, crud-induced power shift, distinctive crud pattern, and Zero-by-Ten results), management of competing core design interests (fuel cost, operating margin), refueling outage length and cycle length impacts to core design, multi-cycle optimization strategies, power uprate strategies or experience, and new fuel design implementation strategies or experience.

Organizers: David Orr, Moussa Mahgerefteh

## MC 2011, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil

The next ANS Mathematics & Computations Topical meeting will take place on May 8-12, 2011 in Copacabana, Rio de Janeiro, Brazil. The meeting focuses on all areas of computational nuclear science and related application fields, and aims to provide a forum for the exchange of ideas and presentation of state of the art applied mathematical and computational methods against the backdrop of one of the world's most beautiful cities. Reactor Physics naturally figures prominently in the program, and RPD members are thus cordially invited to attend and present their latest work.

The deadline for paper submission is November 30, 2010. The paper should be a concise, selfcontained document that will enable the reviewers to establish the novelty and relevance of the work in the context of its field of application. Subject to acceptance, the paper will have subsequent opportunity of being augmented/re-edited, for publication in the conference proceedings. Selected papers will be chosen for publication in a special issue of Nuclear Science and Engineering. More details of the conference can be found at www.mc2011.org. <u>Important note</u>: visitors from some countries including US are subject to Brazilian visa requirements.

Please check with with your local Brazilian Consulate General the visa guidelines and requirements. For US residents a list of Brazilian Consulates and their jurisdiction can be found in:

http://www.consulatebrazil.org/jurisd.htm.

Please also refer to:

http://tinyurl.com/mc2011visas,

which gives an outline of the visa procedure and also a list of countries and their respective visa requirements. Finally note that visas once issued have to be used in 90 days.

The conference secretariat will happy to advise on this and any other issue which may arise, and help also with travel plans: secretaria@mc2011.org

We look forward to welcoming you to Rio de Janeiro and to M&C 2011.

Cassiano de Oliveira, Chair (cassiano@unm.edu)

Jorge Spitalnik, Co-Chair (jspitalnik@lasans.org.br)

Ricardo Barros, Techical Program Chair (rcbarros@mc2011.org)

### 2009-10 Reactor Physics Division Officers

Chair		Vice Chair		
Dr. G. Ivan Maldonado		Dr. Benoit Forget		
University of Tennessee		Massachusetts Instit	ute of Technology	
311 Pasqua Engineering		77 Massachusetts Ava		
Knoxyille TN 37996-2300		Room 24-214		
Phone: (865) 974-7562: FAX: (865) 974-066	58	Cambridge MA 02139		
Email: ivan maldonado@utk.edu		Phone: (617) 253-1655		
Email: Ivan.matdonado@utk.cdu		Email: bforget@mit.edu		
Treasurer		Secretary		
Dr. Alireza Haghighat		Dr. Mark DeHart		
University of Florida		Idaho National Laboratory		
Nuclear & Radiological Engineering Department		Nuclear Science and Engineering Divison		
202 Nuclear Sciences Building		PO Box 1625		
Gainesville, FL 32611		Idaho Falls, ID 83404		
Phone: (352) 392-1401x306 ; FAX: (352) 39	2-3380	Phone: (208) 526-1279 ; FAX: (208) 526-2930		
Email: haghighat@ufl.edu		Email: Mark.DeHart@inl.gov		
Executive Committee				
2011	2012		2013	
Dr. Germina Ilas	Dr. Mark DeHart		Dr Tunc Aldemir	
Oak Ridge National Laboratory	Distinguished R&D	Staff	E427 Scott Laboratory	
PO Box 2008	Idaho National Labo	ratory	201 W 19th Ave	
MS 6172	P.O. Box 1625		Columbus, OH 43210	
Oak Ridge, TN 37831-6172	Idaho Falls, ID 8341	5-3870	(614) 292-4627	
Phone: (865) 241-4672	Phone (208) 526-1279		aldemir.1@osu.edu	
Email: ilasg@ornl.gov	E-mail: Mark.DeHart@inl.gov			
Dr. Eleodor M. Nichita	Dr. David Griesheimer		Mr. Robb Borland	
University of Ontario Inst. of Tech	Bechtel Bettis, Inc.		Manager, Nuclear Fuel & Analysis	
Schl of Energy Systems and Nucl. Sci.	P.O. Box 79		FirstEnergy Nuclear Operating Company	
2000 Simcoe Street North	West Mifflin, P 1512	22	330.384.2483 (office)	
shawa, Ontario L1H 7K4,	Phone: (412) 476-65	01	rjborland@firstenergycorp.com	
CANADA	E-mail: grieshei@bettis.gov			
Phone: (905) 721-8668x2968				
Fax: (905) 721-3046				
Email: eleodor.nichita@uoit.ca				
Dr. Ronald J. Ellis	Dr. Dumitru Serghiuta		Dr. Blair P. Bromley	
1153 Oak Haven Rd.	Senior Reactor Phys	icist	Reactor Physicist,	
Knoxville, $1N 3/932$	Physics and Fuel Div	/1sion,	AECL - Chalk River Laboratories	
Phone: $(865) 5/4-610/$	Consider Nuclear Sc	sment and Analysis	1 Plant Bood, Chally Diver, ON, KOL 110	
Fax. $(803) 5/4-9019$	Canadian Nuclear Sa $(612)047(2201)$	liety Commission	$(612)$ 594 9911 $\times$ 42676	
Eman. emsij@orm.gov	(015)94/-2201		(013) 384-8811X430/0	
	Dr. Glenn Sigden	inse-cesni.ge.ea	Dr. Akio Vamamoto	
	Georgia Institute of	Fechnology	Associate Professor Dept of Material	
	G W Woodruff Sch	ol	Physics and Energy Engineering Graduate	
	Nuclear & Radiologi	cal Engineering	School of Engineering Nagova University	
	Atlanta GA 30332-0	1405	Furo-cho Chikusa-ku Nagoya-shi 464-	
	Phone: (352) 870-5080		8603 Japan	
	E-mail: sioden@gate	ch.edu	+81-52-789-5121	
			a-vamamoto@nucl.nagova-u.ac.jp	
Program	Standard/Honors &	Awards	Scholarship/Goals & Membership	
Fausto Franceschini	Dr. Dimitrios Cokinos		Dr. Jess Gehin	
Westinghouse Electric Company	Brookhaven Nationa	l Laboratory	Oak Ridge National Laboratory	
Science and Technology Department	Building 130		2218 Brighton Farms Blvd.	
Pittsburgh, PA 15235-5083	Upton, NY 11973-500		Knoxville, TN 37932-1400	
Phone: (412) 374-4461	Phone: (516) 344-2146		Phone: (865) 576-5093	
Fax: (412) 256-2444	Fax: (516) 344-3957		Fax: (865) 574-9619	
Email: francef@westinghouse.com	Email: cokinos@bnl.go		Email: gehinjc@ornl.go	
Immediate Past Chair		Past-Past Chair		
Mr. Robert R. St Clair		Mr. Jeffery L. Bradfute, P.E.		
Duke Energy		Westinghouse Electric Company		
P.O. Box 1006		Nuclear Fuel Business Unit		
Charlotte, NC 28201-1006		5801 Bluff Road		
(704) 382-6820		Columbia, SC 29250		
brstclai@duke-energy.com		Phone: (803) 647-20	Prone: $(803) 64/-2080$ ; Fax: $(803) 695-39/1$	
		Email: bradfuil@we	Email: bradfuil@westinghouse.com	

## ANS Reactor Physics Division Program Committee (Effective June 2010)

Alternate
Dr. Blair P. Bromley
Reactor Physicist,
AECL - Chalk River Laboratories
Building 889 - Keys School - Room 130
1 Plant Road, Chalk River, ON, K0J 1J0
Phone: (613) 584-8811x43676
Fax: (613) -584-8055
E-mail: bromleyb@aecl.ca

2008/2011	2009/2012	2010/2013
Dr. Benoit Forget, Assistant Professor	Dr. Blair P. Bromley	Jeffrey A. Borkowski, Ph.D.
Massachusetts Institute of Technology	Reactor Physicist,	Project Manager, Training Simulators
77 Massachusetts Ave.	AECL - Chalk River Laboratories	Studsvik 504 Shoup Ave, Suite 201
Room-214	Building 889 - Keys School - Room 130	Idaho Falls ID USA 83402-3502
Cambridge, MA 02139	1 Plant Road, Chalk River, ON, K0J 1J0	Office: +1 208 522 4440
Phone: (617) 253-1655	Phone: (613) 584-8811x43676	Fax: +1 208 522 1187
E-mail: bforget@mit.edu	Fax: (613) -584-8055	
	E-mail: bromleyb@aecl.ca	
Dr. Hansen Joo, Fellow Engineer	Dr. Nam Zin Cho, Professor	Dr. Andrei Rineiski,
Bettis Atomic Power Laboratory	Department of Nuclear and Quantum	Karlsruher Institut für Technologie,
Reactor Technology	Engineering	Campus Nord, KI1/IKE1, B. 421,
PO Box /9 West Mifflin, DA 15122 0070	KAISI 272 I Kusana dang Yusang au	Commonly
West Millin, PA 15122-0079 Phone: (412) 476 5242	5/5-1 Kusong-dong, Yusong-gu	Germany Phono: ±40,7247,82,4605
Findle: $(412) 476 - 5242$ Eax: $(412) 476 - 5205$	Dacjeoli 505-701, Kolea Dhono : $\pm 82.42.250.2810$	Findle. $\pm 497247824093$
rax. (412) 470-3303	Findle $+82.42-350-3819$ Fax: $+82.42-350-3810$ or 5850	F Mail: Andrei Rineiski@kit.edu
	F-mail ::nzcho@kaist ac kr	L-man. marci. Rineiski@kit.edd,
Dr. Deokiung Lee	Dr Dan Ilas	Dr. Shinya Kosaka
R&D Staff Reactor Physics Group	Radiation Transport and Criticality Group	Manager of in-core and safety analysis
Nuclear Science and Technology Division	Nuclear Science & Technology Division	Nuclear Engineering Dent
ORNL	Oak Ridge National Laboratory	TEPCO SYSTEMS Co
P.O. Box 2008, MS 6172	P.O. Box 2008	2-37-28 Eitai, Koutou-ku
Oak Ridge, TN 37831-6172	Oak Ridge, TN 37831-6170	Tokyo 135-0034, JAPAN
Phone: (865) 574-0585	Phone: (865) 576-9119	TEL:int+81-3-6364-2411
Fax: (865) 574-9619	Fax (865) 576-3513	FAX:int+81-3-5245-8401
E-mail: leed@ornl.gov	E-mail: ilasd@ornl.gov	E-mail:kosaka-shinya@tepsys.co.jp
Dr. Mohamed Ouisloumen,	Jesse J Klingensmith	Prof. Piero Ravetto
Fellow Engineer	Criticality Engineer	Politecnico di Torino
Westinghouse Electric Company	AREVA Federal Services LLC	Professor of Nuclear Reactor Physics
Nuclear Fuel Business Unit	3315 Old Forest Road, OF15	Dipartimento di Energetica
P. U. BOX 555	Lynchburg, VA 24502	Corso Duca degli Abruzzi, 24
Philsburgh, PA 15250-0555 Phone: (412) 274 5841	Phone: $(434) 832-48/5$ EAX: $(434) 382 4875$	10129 10000 Phone: $\pm 30.011$ 5644442 Eav: $\pm 30.011$
Findle. $(412) 374 - 3841$ Eav: $(412) 374 - 284$	FAA. (434) 362-4673 E mail: jassa klingansmith@araya.aom	Filolie. +39 011 3044445, Fax. +39 011
Fax. (412) 574-2284	E-man. Jesse.kingensmini@areva.com	5044499
Dr Dubraykov Pevec	Dr. Moussa Mahgerefteh	Dr. Cristian Rabiti
University of Zagreb	Exelon Nuclear Fuels	Idaho National Laboratory
Department of Applied Physics	200 Exelon Way	Group Leader Advanced Nuclear Method
Unska 3	Kennett Square, PA 1938	Development & Validation
10000 Zagreb, Croatia	Phone (610) 765-5852	Phone:: 1 208 526 6821
Phone: +385-1-6129-667	E-mail: moussa.mahgerefteh	Fax: 1 208 526 2930
Fax: +385-1-6129-607	@exeloncorp.com	P.O. BOX 1625 MS 3870
E-mail: Dubravko.Pevec@fer.hr		Email: cristian.rabiti@inl.gov
Dr. Zhaopeng Zhong	David S. Orr, P.E.	Dr. A. C. (Skip) Kahler
Argonne National Laboratory	Duke Energy Corporation	Los Alamos National Laboratory
9/00 South Cass Ave.	P.U. Box 1006	1-2, Nuclear and Particle Physics,
Argonne, IL 60439-4814	Charlotte, NC 28201-1006	Building 200, Koom 215
E-mail: zznong@ani.gov	FIGURE: $(704) 382-80/3$ Equ: $(704) 382 7852$	r.U.BOX 1003, NIS B214 Los Alamos NIM 97545
	Fax. (104) 502-1052 E-mail: David Orr@duke energy com	Phone 1-505-606-2042 (office)
	L-man. David.On@duke-energy.com	Email: akabler@lanl.gov
		Eman, akamerajam.gov

2008/2011	2009/2012	2010/2013
	Dr. Thomas M. Sutton Knolls Atomic Power Laboratory 28 Cherryvale Blvd. Slingerlands New York 12159 Phone: (518) 395-7047 Fax: (518) 395-4422 E-mail: Thomas.Sutton@unnpp.gov	Scott Palmtag Global Nuclear Fuel (GNF) Technical Leader, Advanced Methods 3901 Castle Hayne Road P.O. Box 780, M/C A-55 Wilmington, NC 28402 Phone 910-620-6540 Email: palmtag@gmail.com
	Andrew Worrall, MSc, FInstP Technical Authority, Reactors and Fuels Reactor and Fuel Technology National Nuclear Laboratory, A709, Springfields, Salwick, Preston (Lancashire - UK) Phone:: +44 (0) 1772 764474 Fax: +44 (0) 1772 762470 E-mail: andrew.worrall@nnl.co.uk	Dr. Eugene Shwageraus Massachusetts Institute of Technology 77 Massachusetts Ave. Room 24-215A Cambridge, MA 02139 Phone: (617) 253-4231 E-mail: eugenesh@mit.edu
		Dr. Won Sik Yang Nuclear System Analysis Department Reactor & Fuel Cycle Analysis Section Argonne National Laboratory 9700 South Cass Ave. Argonne, IL 60439-4814, Phone:+1 630-252-9747 Fax: +1 630-252-9747 Email: wyang@anl.gov